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DESCRIGE THE PRESEMT AND ORIGINAL (H knoum) FHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Tiny Hickory Neck Church, on the east side of U. 5. Routd
60 one mile north of Toano, is one of the few colonial buildings
that can be seen from the highways leading to Williamsburg. It
is a rectangular structure, three bays long, with entrance
through the south gable end. The dimensions are 36 1/2' north
to south and 28 1/2' east to west. The eighteenth century
brickwork, on the north, east, and west walls, is Flemish bond
above watertable and English bond below. There is random
glazing of the headers.

The present building, although in solid condition, is
only a fragment of the colonial church. The north (back) wall
and the northern-most two bays of each side wall date from an
extension made to the main body of the church in 1773~1774.
Excavation has revealed that the north side wall of the original
nave abutted the side walls of this transept at a point between
the two southern windows. The southern-most bay of each side
dates from the circa 1825 alteration of the structure. When the
nave was removed about that time, a southern extension of at
least two bays was added to the transept. The Flemish bond
brickwork of the extension is constructed with oyster shell
mortar, but 1t is less well executed than the eighteenth century
work. The beveled row of watertable bricks is laid with
alternating headers and stretchers on the extension, and in all
headers to the north. The nineteenth century window frames of
the southern extension differ from the four earlier windows, as
do the jack arches. Evidence for another bhay, now mostly re-
moved, can be seen at the southern end of the west wall, where
the edge of a window opening with arch splay above 1is visable.
At some date after the circa 1825 construction, possibly as

late as the 1870's, the south end of the rectangular bullding
was taken down and the end was bricked up with five-course
American bond, laid in varying degrees of quality.

A number of other alterations may be seen in the present
structure. The window frames were lengthened in the second or
third quarters of the nineteenth century, the frames being cut
and lowered, wlth blocks inserted. Thus the original sash,
probably nine-over-nine, was replaced with nine- oVer-twelve
sash. The roof and interior finish are modern. A brick porch
has been added to the south wall, and a vestry to the north one,
the latter obscuring an early exterlor doorway. No electribity
is used except for the orgaﬁ ‘and the church, wlth all its
apparent changes, retains a simplistlc charm. '
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Blisland Parish, named for a parish in Cornwall, was
formed in the areca of New Kent County before the county was
established in 1654, The parish acquired territory in James
City County as a result of the dissolution of Wilmington Parish
in 1725. Hickory Neck Church, then known only as the Lower
Church of Blisland Parish, was ordered built in October, 1733,
and it was completed by 1738. The name Hickory Neck seems to
have derived from a nearby plantation, perhaps in the late
eighteenth century.

The church as enlarged by the addition of a south
transept in 1773-1774, just before it was to experience war,

the Disestablishment, and abandonment. It was used as a
hospltal during the Revolution, and British, French, and
American troops camped in the churchyard at various stages of
the war. The vestry book, dating from 1721, was closed in 1786.

The building deteriorated through lack of maintenance
for forty years. In 1825 the General Assembly constituted

"the trustees of the Hickory Neck School Society in James City
County™as a corporate body with the intent of converting the
0ld church into a school. A fund derived from the previous
sale of glebe lands was used to establish the school, Hickony
Neck Academy, and to prepare the bullding. The older main body
of the church was pulled down and the south end of the wing was
closed up to form the present small building. Functions of the
Academy were interrupted during the War Between the States when
both Unlon and Confederate socldiers used the building as
barracks. The Academy occupled the bullding until 1907, when
the arca's sccondary ceducation was transferred to newly bullt
Toano High School. Hickory Neck was then reconsecrated, and
has since been used as an Eplscopal church.
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NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION,

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
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evaluated sccording to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
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J. é. Fishburne, Director
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